
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

JANUARY 3, 2017 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the following Board of City Commission 
meetings: 
i. December 13, 2016 - Regular Meeting (*Rescheduled from 

December 6, 2016) 
ii. December 20, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 

D. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

E. BIDS: 
 

F. CONSENT AGENDA: 
1. Consider approval of Cost Participation and Maintenance (CPM) 

Agreement with NDDOT for signs project. 
2. Consider approval of Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

(PER) Agreement with NDDOT for Main Street Signals project. 
3. Consider approval of the following Corrections to 2016 True & Full 

Value abatements: 
i. Leo Snider  
ii. Kent & Gail Jacobson  

4. Consider approval of the following PD out of state training requests: 
i. Det. Matthew Graves – Fire Investigation training in 

Emmitsburg, MD 
ii. Lt. Pat Haug – Improving Criminal Justice Response 

(Domestic Violence) orientation in Alexandria, VA Jan. 24-
26, 2017. 

5. Consider approval for reimbursement money from the ND 
Department of Emergency Services (NDDES), which has been paid 
to the City of Mandan, be added back into the Fire Department’s 
2016 budget. 

 
G. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

January 3, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

 
H. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Consider Growth Fund Committee appointments 
 
I. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 
 
J. OTHER BUSINESS: 

1. Consider declaring a state of emergency to include costs and 
damages from severe storm activity to limit the hardships and 
impact of this emergency upon the citizens of the City of Mandan.  

 
K. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. January 17, 2017 (5 p.m.) 
2. February 7, 2017 
3. February 21, 2017 (5 p.m.) 
 

L. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 1 of 10 

The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on December 13, 2016 

in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.  This is a rescheduled 

meeting from December 6, 2016. Commissioners present were Helbling, Rohr, Braun, Davis, 

and Laber.  Department Heads present were Police Chief Ziegler, City Attorney Brown, Director 

of Public Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, Business Development and Communications 

Director Huber, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Principal Planner Decker, and 

Building Official Lalim. Absent:  Finance Director Welch, City Administrator Neubauer, and 

Assessor Shaw. 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   

 

C. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider for approval of the minutes from the November 15, 2016 regular City 

Commission meeting.  Commissioner Laber moved to approve the minutes as presented. 

Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

Mayor Helbling extended a thank you to the Public Works Department for the street snow 

removal and road maintenance over the last several days during the heavy snowfalls.  

 

D.         PUBLIC HEARING:   

 

E.         BIDS:   

 

F.         CONSENT AGENDA 

1. For information, approved change order for Lakewood 9th Street Improvement District. 

2. Consider site authorization for Ducks Unlimited at Baymont Hotel for June 15, 2017 and 

also waive $100 fee. 

3. Consider SSBCI Allocation Agreement Amendment to receive an additional $44,030 for 

the Mandan-led consortium  

4. Consider approval of minor plat for Replat of Lot 1, Block 2, Lakewood Commercial 

Park 4th Addition 

5. Consider approval of Mandan Athletic & Recreation Club games of chance at Mandan 

Public Schools for Dec. 5, 2016 through May 31, 2017. 

6. Consider Converting the Youth Worker - Truancy Services Specialist position into a 

second School Resource Officer position.  

7. Consider site authorization for Special Olympics North Dakota at Midway Lanes for Oct. 

31-Nov. 4, 2016 and also waive $100 fee. 

8. Consider emergency repair work for water transmission line. (Moved to New Business 

#8.)  

9. Consider Approval of MOU’s with Bismarck, Burleigh and Morton Counties.    

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Commissioner Davis 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 2 of 10 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The 

motion passed. 

 

G.         OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Discuss Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) applications submitted and 

selection committee’s rankings for the Urban Roads Program (URP) projects. Justin Froseth, 

Planning and Engineering Director led the discussion on the Transportation Improvement Project 

(TIP) noting that this issue was discussed at the last meeting in November.  He explained that the 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) coordinates funding requests for NDDOT TIP 

roadway projects. These are the projects that would be eligible for federal funding assistance 

because of their existing functional classification or future expected classification. 

 

At the last commission meeting, discussion was had regarding several projects as possible 

candidates to apply for the Urban Roads Programming (URP) funding and possible approval of 

rankings. Three of those projects went to the MPO as projects to compete for those federal funds 

in the year 2021, the year solicited for since the DOT programs projects four years before the 

year of bid. 

 

On Monday, November 28, 2016 a meeting was held with other jurisdictions within the Selection 

Committee to evaluate all projects submitted and to score them against each other using guidance 

set forth by the MPO. Each jurisdiction that applied for projects took turns presenting their 

projects in addition to the information each submitted on their project’s applications. 

 

For Mandan’s applications, there was discussion at the last commission meeting that our projects 

came without rankings because we were unable to come to a consensus with desired rankings at 

this time. A summary was provided of the Selection Committee discussions that occurred. 

 

The Selection Committee’s rankings are required to go through approvals by the MPO policy 

Board and then on to the DOT for their programming. With an annual allotment of 

approximately $4 million to the MPO from the Federal Highway Administration for URP 

projects, it is unlikely the DOT will move forward with programming any more than the highest 

ranked project. There is $26.6 million worth of projects that ranked higher than Mandan’s at the 

conclusion of the rankings process.  A recap of the City of Mandan applications includes the 

following:  

 

2021 Urban Roads Applications. These projects are eligible for approximately 80% federal 

funding with about a 20% local match required, only three projects were permitted: 

~ Extension of Boundary Road to the west from its current terminal  

~ Reconstruction of 8
th

 Ave. NW from Old Red Trail to 27
th

 St. NW 

~ Extension of Division Street east from 8
th

 Ave. NE to Mandan Avenue 

 

Director Froseth said that it is possible that none of these three projects will be approved in 2021.  

This is an update on the projects, and for the 2021 application it will not matter how the projects 

are prioritized.  However, to be consistent for the future, the projects should still be prioritized.  

Mayor Helbling recommended waiting to prioritize these projects until a later time in order to 

see what can be done with 8
th

 Avenue under another funding mechanism (by the City of 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 3 of 10 

Mandan).  Commissioner Laber recommended putting something out there that we think is 

important just in case with the improvements and infrastructure funding that appears to be 

approved. Perhaps the City of Mandan wants to get on the board with some of these in 

preparation of pulling them forward in case additional funding becomes available.   She said she 

has a problem with Division Street going west because there is a scenic view shed easement and 

nothing can go in the property other than housing.  That would be a 3
rd

 project on the list.  She 

suggested looking at the Reconstruction of 8
th

 and then Boundary Road construction project 

which is the road that goes west of 6
th

, as the 3
rd

 priority.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Urban Roads Regional project ranking priorities as: 

1)  8
th

 Avenue Reconstruction  

2)  Division Street going east  

 

Mayor Helbing commented that he does not believe 8
th

 Avenue will hold up until 2021 stating 

that the City will have to deal with that road before submitting anything.  He is not sure that it 

should even be put on the list of future projects for 2021.  He suggested leaving the 8
th

 Avenue 

project on the list, but move it to the 2
nd

 or 3
rd

 on the list.  He suggested waiting to discuss this 

matter when the HUB City funding is discussed.  Director Froseth explained that if we have a 

project on the list and then we decide to take it off the list it would have very little positive or 

negative reaction.   

 

The motion died due to lack of a second.  

 

Mayor Helbling suggested putting this matter on the Agenda after a meeting is held to prioritize 

the projects.   

 

Director Froseth stated that the 2021 Urban Regional Applications should be addressed.  He 

explained that these projects are eligible for approximately 80% federal funding and 10% state 

funding with about a 10% local match required.  He said that two projects fit that criteria and the 

Selection Committee meeting held today, recommended for application were, not ranked, are: 

~ Main Street Concrete Pavement spot repair from 10
th

 Avenue West to Twin City Drive of 

$400,000 

~ Memorial Highway, Phase 1 (similar to the three phases of the West Fargo Main Street 

Project) 

 

Director Froseth recommended for the 2021 Urban Regional projects with the priorities being: 

(1) Reconstruct Memorial Highway, Phase I of a likely three phase approach. 

(2) Concrete Pavement Repair (spot corrections) of Main Street from 10
th

 Avenue 

west to Twin City Drive. 

 

Mayor Helbling commented that Memorial Highway is a state highway and he has a concern if it 

will take 9 years to complete wherein it should be one to two years.  This is a state/federal 

problem. However, when it is completed it will be turned over to the City of Mandan for 

maintenance. Thus he questioned the urgency of this particular project.  Commissioner Rohr 

stated that a study was done on Memorial Highway in 2010, of which Director Froseth 

commented that study would probably be referenced for any upcoming plans rather than doing a 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 4 of 10 

whole new study to come up with recommended plans.   

 

Mayor Helbling stated that the rankings of the two projects listed will work for the City of 

Mandan recommendations at this time.  He will contact the state to discuss this matter again.  

 

H.         NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Presentation by Mike Manstrom, Dougherty & Company LLC, regarding the sale of 

$420,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series B. (See Resolutions #1i, #1ii, #1iii.) – 

Item removed from agenda. 

 

2. Consider Restaurant Rewards sales tax rebate agreement. Business Development & 

Communications Director Huber presented a request to consider a sales tax rebate agreement for 

use in the Restaurant Rewards program. The City Commission approved the Restaurant Rewards 

program on April 5, 2016, and an application process on April 19, 2016. The program allows for 

a sales tax rebate, subject to application approval, at a rate of 100% for 5 years for new and 

expanding restaurants locating in Mandan. As part of this program, an agreement between the 

City of Mandan and the recipient restaurant business is needed to allow authorization for the 

release of records from the N.D. Tax Department for purposes of verifying sales tax remittances 

as needed.  City Attorney Brown, City Administrator Neubauer and Director Huber have worked 

on this over the last several months.  Attorney Brown prepared the agreement and had it 

reviewed by personnel at the N.D. Tax Department to assure congruity with its policies and 

practices.  Director Huber recommended approval of the sales tax rebate agreement for use with 

the Restaurant Rewards Program. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the sales tax rebate agreement for use with the 

Restaurant Rewards Program.  Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         Consider recommendations of appointments to Mandan Architectural Review 

Commission. Doug Lalim, Building Official, said there are two expiring seats on the Mandan 

Architectural Review Commission (MARC) Board.  He presented a recommendation of Daniel 

Walter to the Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC).  Amber Larson has showed 

interest to continue a second term on the MARC Commission. Walter and Larson would be 

filling 3-year terms starting January 1, 2017.   

 

The Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC) consists of nine members who are 

Miles Mehlhoff, Doug Lalim, Kim Fettig, James Jeromchek, Leonard Bullinger, Katie Wiedrich, 

Amber Larson, Lee Pierce and Steve Nardello. There are currently two positions up for 

appointment, which are Miles Mehlhoff and Amber Larson. In order to solicit interested parties, 

announcements were posted on the City of Mandan’s website and social media.  Two letters of 

interest were received. The Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC) interviewed the 

applicants.  MARC recommended appointment Daniel Walter and Amber Larson to fill the two 

vacant positions.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the appointments of Daniel Walter and Amber Larson to 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 5 of 10 

fill 3-year terms starting January 1, 2017 to end January 1, 2020 on the MARC Commission.   

Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.         Consider Community Beautification Committee (CBC) recommendations for 

appointments.   Business Development & Communications Director Huber presented a request in 

the absence of City Administrator Neubauer for the recommendations from the Community 

Beatification Committee (CBC) for committee member appointments for consideration to the 

City Commission for two expiring terms. There are two, 3-year terms available on the CBC. 

Public notice was provided on October 13, 2016, with a deadline by November 1, 2016. Four 

letters of interest were received.  Two members terms are expiring:  Laurie Leingang (1
st
 term) 

and Damian Huettl (1
st
 term).  The CBC reviewed four letters of interested parties from Susan 

Beehler, Sharon Gallagher, Damian Huettl and Laurie Leingang.  The CBC recommends the 

appointment of Sharon Gallagher and the re-appointment of Laurie Leingang both for 3-year 

terms ending December 31, 2019. 

 

Commissioner Davis moved to approve the re-appointment of Laurie Leingang and the 

appointment of Sharon Gallagher to the Community Beautification Committee for 3-year terms 

ending December 31, 2019.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

5.         Consider Mandan Airport Authority recommendations for appointment. Marc Taylor, 

Treasurer of the Mandan Airport Authority presented a request for appointments to the Mandan 

Airport Authority.  The Mandan Airport Authority consists of five members who are Mike 

Wagner, Commissioner Mike Braun, Marc Taylor, Lee Weinhandl and Chris Brown. The 

Airport Authority is tasked with managing the affairs of Mandan Airport. There is currently one 

position up for appointment due to a term expiration of Lee Weinhandl. The term would be 

January 1, 2017 through December 2021. In order to solicit interested parties for these positions 

announcements were placed in the Mandan News on November, 2015, on the Mandan Airport 

and City of Mandan’s website and by word of mouth. Four letters of interest were received from 

Shannon Boehm, Jody Leingang, Robert Reimers and David Tomlinson.  The Mandan Airport 

Authority met and interviewed 3 of the 4 applicants and recommended the appointment of 

Robert Reimers to the Mandan Airport Authority for a 5-year term ending December 31, 2021. 

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the appointment of Robert Reimers to the Mandan 

Airport Authority for a 5-year term ending December 31, 2021.  Commissioner Rohr seconded 

the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

6.         Consider moving forward with City Stormwater Masterplan given the outline of goals 

and objectives. Planning and Engineering Director Froseth outlined the goals and objectives of a 

Stormwater Master Plan and to seek approval for Request for Proposals (RFP) development.  

Proper stormwater management is a common complaint to the department. If not properly 

controlled, runoff water from springs melt, and from powerful storms have the potential to cause 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 6 of 10 

a substantial amount of property damage. A formal effort towards stormwater management was 

implemented in 2006 with the City adopting an ordinance to require stormwater management 

planning. The City’s ordinance requires that multi-family, commercial, and industrial sites, along 

with residential subdivisions submit a stormwater management plan before proceeding with 

development.  HUB City funds have been discussed to be used for this project.  If not HUB City 

funding, the Utility Fund could be used to fund this project.  Director Froseth explained that this 

study would take a look at growth areas throughout the City and see if a regional pond might 

work for those areas. In addition, the study should take it further and size such potential ponds 

and come up with preliminary estimates to construct. It was suggested to recommend a process 

to recoup the costs of building any regional pond from the benefitting properties to come from 

the study. Other aspects of the master plan would include an audit of the department’s current 

stormwater management practices and recommendations to improve efficiency. It is anticipated 

that this study would be conducted in 2017 and 2018. 

 

Director Froseth reviewed the goals and objectives of this master plan:  

1. Consider areas of town where large scale development is most likely to occur and provide 

guidance for implementation of regional ponds including; 

      a. Location  

      b. Size, considering type of development  

      c. Hydraulic Impact 

      d. Administrative setup and funding 

  

2. Address existing stormwater management problems throughout the City;  

     a. Analyze areas where problems are apparent and complaints are common  

     b. Audit past plans for proper adherence to stormwater ordinance.  

     c. Audit past project construction for adherence to plans.  

     d. Form recommendations for the city to cost effectively correct problem areas 

 

3.  Make recommendations for the engineering office to improve its handling of stormwater 

management; 

     a. Suggest ways to bring our system of stormwater management in continuity with our MS4 

permit. An MS4 (Municipal Separate Stormwater Sewer System) permit is a permit that is 

required of all cities of our size in order to ensure the EPA that the city is doing our part to 

ensure quality discharge of City stormwater to nearby lakes, rivers and streams.  

     b. Audit current ordinance and corresponding stormwater manual to suggest changes to 

streamline and improve.  

     c. Audit our technical review of submitted Stormwater Management Plans and suggest 

improvements for consistent quality control of each plan. 

 

Director Froseth recommended moving forward with the creation of a Stormwater Master Plan 

RFP with a goal of completion sometime next month.   

 

Mayor Helbling stated that this is a budgeted item in the Sewer and Water Utility Fund.  He 

recommended going ahead with this project and leave it in the Utility Fund for now because of 

the 30-inch water main coming due for an emergency repair and we do not want to deplete the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 7 of 10 

funds.  If Public Works comes in within budget and the 30-inch is within repair, then we would 

consider if HUB City funding is needed.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the creation of a city-wide Stormwater Master Plan RFP 

with funding to initially come out of the Utility Fund.  Commissioner Braun seconded the 

motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

7.         Consider adoption of the 2015 International Fire Code. 

Fire Chief Nardello presented an update on the International Fire Code.  The City of Mandan 

adopted the 2006 edition of the International Fire Code on October 3, 2006. The International 

Fire Code (IFC) publishes new editions every three years. The City has adopted the updated 

editions when they are issued. The City of Mandan currently uses the 2012 version. The Mandan 

Fire Department would like to adopt and begin using the 2015 edition beginning January 1, 

2017.  The Mandan Fire Department would also like to begin enforcing the 2015 version of the 

IFC. The Mandan Building Inspections will be enforcing the 2015 edition when it adopts the 

North Dakota State Building Code and the fire department should be enforcing the same edition. 

Although there are 75 changes within the 2015 edition, it is Chief Nardello’s opinion that none 

would have any significant impact to business properties. Most changes are for clarification 

purposes of the current 2012 edition. There were some minor amendments to the 2015 code that 

will create a better “fit” with the City of Mandan and other North Dakota communities. 

 

Chief Nardello recommended allowing the fire department to implement the 2015 IFC to include 

appendixes A, B, C, & D with proposed amendments as set forth in agenda item Resolutions and 

Ordinances No. 5. 

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1255 

establishing the 2015 International Fire Code as the Fire Code for the City of Mandan to include 

appendixes A, B, C, & D with proposed amendments.  Commissioner Davis seconded the 

motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

8.           Consider emergency repair work for water transmission line (moved from Consent 

Agenda).  Mayor Helbling stated that a document has already been signed authorizing the repair.   

Planning and Engineering Director Froseth reported that on November 20, 2016, staff recognized 

a water main break on one of the main arteries to serve the City. The 30-inch transmission water 

line that carries water from the Water Treatment Plant to the Sunset Booster Station takes about 

half of the water available.  Without that line we are down to about half our capacity.  If it were 

down during the summer, water restrictions would be implemented.  Due to the circumstances 

involved it was decided that it should be addressed right away with a plan to fix this, namely 30 

inch materials to install and fix the pipe.  Weisz and Sons submitted the lowest bid and 

subsequently a verbal approval to go ahead was given to fix the problem.  There have been prior 

problems with this pipe and there may be a near term project to fix the whole pipe.  Weisz and 

Sons has made some progress with the replacement pipe.  Also, recently on December 5
th

 there 

was another segment that broke near a release valve wherein the pipe broke.  In essence there are 

two areas that need to be fixed on the water line.  At this time it is unknown how far Weisz will 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 8 of 10 

have to go to fix the immediate breaks.  On the east side a joint was found, but the west side has 

not yet been assessed.  The request is to replace existing pipe while there is available manpower 

to do the work and secondly to make sure they do not run out of pipe materials.   

 

Mayor Helbling said that since an emergency declaration has already been established, the extra 

1,000 feet of pipe will need to be approved.  City Attorney Brown concurred with Mayor 

Helbling and stated that the additional pipe is part of the emergency declaration.  Commissioner 

Laber commented that the pipe is priced at $98 per foot and inquired if that is within the normal 

price range.  Director Froseth stated that three price quotes were obtained for the project and $98 

was the low bid and that pricing is within normal limits.  If the 1,000 feet are not used for this 

project, it can be used in the future for other projects.  Director Froseth inquired if the second 

break is to be included within the emergency declaration.   

 

Attorney Brown stated that the emergency declaration speaks to the repair and placement of a 

30-inch water transmission line due to a break located between the Water Treatment Plant and 

the Sunset Avenue Reservoir.  Director Froseth stated that will also cover AE2S fees as well, 

who has assisted in the coordination of this emergency project and inspecting the installation.  

AE2S reported today that the cost of this project is approximately $15,000 per day for the 

construction and approximately $1,500 per day for AE2S services.  Mayor Helbling stated that 

the total estimate is approximately $560,000. Director Froseth did remind the Commission that 

the estimate was for the installation of all that 1200 feet, but it was put together before we had 

two snowstorms and the temperatures fell.  

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the purchase of 1,000 feet of 30 inch pipe.  

Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

 I.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1.          Consider Resolutions for refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series B. (See New 

Business No. 1) Item removed from agenda. 

 

2.  First consideration of Ordinance 1242, an ordinance to amend and re-enact Sec. 101-1-

3, add and enact Article 3 of Chapter 101 and amend and re-enact Sec. 105-1-3, Sec. 105-1-4, 

Article 3 of Chapter 105 and Sec. 109-2-5 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to definitions, 

appeals, accessory dwelling units, use groups, residential zoning districts and utility service. 

  Principal Planner Decker presented an ordinance update and revision regarding requirements 

related to a residential zoning.  He said that the last major update of the City of Mandan 

Municipal Code occurred in 1994. Development standards have changed in the last 22 years. 

This proposed ordinance addresses single-family zones and other related requirements. Other 

ordinances will be presented later that modify multi-family, commercial, industrial and special 

purpose zones.  The current code has three single-family zoning districts, R7, R3.2 and RMH.   

Planner Decker reviewed and addressed the questions that were received.  The changes proposed 

include: 

 

 R7 allows standalone single-family dwellings on minimum 7,000 square foot lots. It also 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 9 of 10 

allows several other uses.  

 

 R3.2 allows single-family and two family dwellings (commonly referred to as twin 

homes) on minimum 7,000 square foot lots. The code allows a twin home lot to be split, 

thus creating two single-family units on separate lots with no side yard between the units. 

It also allows several other uses.  

 

 RMH allows single family mobile homes on minimum 7,000 square ft. lots.  It also 

allows several other uses. 

 

Commissioner Laber stated that the Planning and Zoning Committee did not have any objections 

to the changes as presented.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1242, an ordinance 

to amend and re-enact Sec. 101-1-3, add and enact Article 3 of Chapter 101 and amend and re-

enact Sec. 105-1-3, Sec. 105-1-4, Article 3 of Chapter 105 and Sec. 109-2-5 of the Mandan 

Municipal Code related to definitions, appeals, accessory dwelling units, use groups, residential 

zoning districts and utility service. Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.          Second consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance No. 1241 amending and 

reenacting Sec. 105-1-2 and adding and enacting Sec. 105-1-15 of the Mandan Municipal Code 

related to fences, sight triangles and signs.  Principal Planner Decker stated that this matter 

pertains to  the City of Mandan Sign Code. A review was done to make sure the fences and sight 

triangles matched.  This has been under review for about a year with many discussions and 

meetings held.  It is as limited as necessary in the standards applied.  The goal is to be able to 

manage signs throughout the City.    

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the second consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 

No. 1241 amending and reenacting Sec. 105-1-2 and adding and enacting Sec. 105-1-15 of the 

Mandan Municipal Code related to fences, sight triangles and signs. Commissioner Rohr 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The 

motion passed. 

 

4.         First consideration of Ordinance 1254 amending and reenacting PUD District 2015-01 

related to Lakewood 9
th

 Addition.  City Planner Decker presented a request to modify a 

requirement in PUD District 2015-01 related to the uses allowed on Lots 1, 24 and 25 of Block 2.  

He said that when this area was created there were several large parcels that were zoned 

commercial.  Since the adoption of the PUD the Good Samaritan Health Complex has been 

constructed on one of those parcels and the other two have generated interest in development.  It 

is recognized by this update that the one parcel houses a health facility. The other two have 

added a requirement for a buffer on that property line between the commercial property and the 

residential parcel.  The third parcel is behind the fire station along 40
th

 and that parcel does not 

need any restrictions on the commercial uses on that parcel because there are no residential lots 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Page 10 of 10 

adjoining.  Since Lot 24 is adjacent to residential lots, restrictions have been added to limit the 

time of day for uses on Lot 24. Since Lot 25 is not adjacent to any residential uses, there is no 

need to restrict commercial uses on this lot.  

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1254 amending and 

reenacting PUD District 2015-01 related to Lakewood 9th Addition. Commissioner Laber 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The 

motion passed. 

 

5.         First consideration of Ordinance 1255 adopting the 2015 International Fire Code with 

amendments.  See New Business item discussed above.   

 

J.          OTHER BUSINESS:   

 

Mayor Helbling stated that he has the Bismarck Mandan Development Association Portfolio and 

he would like to have another Commissioner take that over due to being unable to attend many 

of the meetings.  He requested Commissioners to consider taking this over.   

 

Commissioner Laber requested clarification of the TIP projects discussed. Are they going to be 

reviewed after the next HUB City funding meeting?   Mayor Helbling stated that the matter can 

be discussed when HUB City funding is discussed.  Administrator Neubauer will be requested to 

put it on the Agenda for further discussion at a later time. 

 

1. Consider moving into executive session pursuant to North Dakota Century Code § 44-04-

19.1(9) to discuss litigation related to Dundon, etal vs. Morton County & City of Mandan. 

 

A motion was made by Commissioner Laber to move into Executive Session pursuant to Agenda 

Other Business Item No. J(1).  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

The Board went into Executive Session at 7:22 p.m.  

 

L.         ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, Commissioner 

Laber moved to adjourn the meeting at approximately 7:35 p.m.  Commissioner Braun seconded 

the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. The motion 

passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

 Tim Helbling 

President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 20, 2016 

Page 1 of 8 

The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on December 20, 2016 

in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota. Commissioners present 

were Helbling, Rohr, Braun, and Davis.  Department Heads present were Finance Director 

Welch, Police Chief Ziegler, City Attorney Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Fire Chief 

Nardello, Business Development and Communications Director Huber, Planning & Engineering 

Director Froseth, Principal Planner Decker, Assessor Shaw, and Building Official Lalim. Absent:  

Commissioner Laber and Director of Public Works Wright. 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   

 

C. MINUTES: 

 

D.         PUBLIC HEARING:   

1.          Consider approval of plat for Sylvester’s Industrial Park 10
th

 Addition: Principal Planner 

Decker presented a request for the approval of a plat stating that a minor plat is typically less 

than four acres in size and that this plat is a little larger than that as this is a lot split.  There is no 

new construction involved in this request.  The property owners wish to transfer ownership 

separately of the building and the storage units.  It was decided to handle this as a standard plat.  

Notices have been published in the newspaper and letters have been sent to the neighbors and it 

was presented at the Planning and Zoning Commission who have signed off on the request.  This 

is simply a transfer of property ownership. City Attorney Brown confirmed that the proper notice 

was given.  

 

Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing and invited anyone to come forward to speak 

for or against the approval of the plat for Sylvester’s Industrial Park 10th Addition project.  A 

second announcement was made to come forward.  Hearing none, this portion of the public 

hearing was closed.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve of plat for Sylvester’s Industrial Park 10
th

 Addition. 

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

E.         BIDS:   

 

F.         CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider approval of monthly bills. 

2.         Consider approval of Vietnam Vets/Legacy Vets Chapter B games of chance at the 

Vietnam Vets/Legacy Vets Clubhouse from Dec. 20, 2016 through May 6, 2017. 

3.        Consider approval of the following abatements: (i) Correction in 2016 True & Full Value 

for John & Lois Kihne; (ii) Correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Adeline Boehm Klapprodt; 

(iii) Kern Properties LLC – Correcting 2016 market value of property to reflect that Land Values 

should be at zero as already included in Parent Parcel; (iv)  Kern Properties LLC – Correcting 

2016 market value of property to reflect the $2.39 per square foot value used on entire 

commercial property for 2016; (v) Correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Patty Moilane / 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 20, 2016 

Page 2 of 8 

Sunrise Delivery to correct 2016 market value of property to reflect the lot split and separation 

of 2 existing structures, that now have 2 separate owners.  

5.         Consider the approval of the towing and wrecker service contract for the City of Mandan 

Police Department for 2017. 

6.         To discuss and recommend a legal retainer agreement between Crowley Fleck PLLP and 

the City of Mandan, effective January 1, 2017. 

7.        Consider 2016 Forestry budget amendment for Dutch Elm Disease removal prior to 

receiving grant reimbursement. 

8.        Consider Fees and Special Event Application Process. 

9.        Consider PD Salary Range Adjustments. 

10.      Consider Budget Amendment -NDDES Reimbursements. 

11.      Consider Amendment No. 2 for time extension on Emergency Generator Project. 

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the Consent Agenda items 1 thru 3 and 5 thru 11 as 

presented.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

Consent Agenda Item No. 4 was removed for discussion: 

4.          Consider Consulting and Services Agreement for payroll and human resource services 

with Central Billing, Inc.  Commissioner Rohr asked whether there will be someone on site 

certain days of the week with the new contract.  City Administrator Neubauer replied that it is 

the same agreement as before other than a time extension that is currently in place.  They will be 

someone on site 2 days per week as they currently are.  This agreement runs through 6/30/17, as 

long as we give a 60 days’ notice in which to terminate.  

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the Consent Agenda item No. 4 as presented.  

Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

G.         OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Update on the 30 inch water pipe: Planning & Engineering Director Froseth reported that 

the project is going well with the emergency repairs to the water main that was approved 

previously.  All of the break section has been replaced with new pipe wherein about 140 ft. of 

new PVC pipe was installed.   Some challenges have been seen with the ponds on the sides; 

wherein the contractor had to put in special piping to keep water out of the pit.  The key point is 

the area is buttoned up and the pipe is in the ground and the area has been graded.  Area No. 2 

located ¾ mile west of the break, was an air release valve that broke and needed to be replaced.  

The contractor was able to mobilize and work in that area and work is progressing well.  The 

pipe has been laid and has been joined to the old pipe on both sides.   The old pipe removed was 

put in back in 1975.  Photos of the old pipe were reviewed and also photos of the new pipe were 

provided. It is expected that water will be run through it on Thursday and flushed out and 

pressure tested and it will be disinfected to make sure it is safe.  The water main should be in full 

operation by this weekend or early next week.   

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 20, 2016 

Page 3 of 8 

H.         NEW BUSINESS: 

1.          Presentation by Mike Manstrom, Dougherty & Company LLC, regarding the sale of 

$420,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series B. (See Resolutions #1i, #1ii, #1iii). 

Mike Manstrom from Dougherty & Company explained the purposes of this action:   

(i)  Consider the sale of $420,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of2016, Series B;   

(ii) Consider the Resolution Awarding Sale of Warrants and Bonds; (iii) Consider the Financing 

Resolution for Street Improvement Districts #198, #200 Definitive Improvement Warrants;   

(iv) Consider the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $420,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds 

of 2016, Series B. 

 

Mr. Manstrom explained that the sale of warrants and bonds are necessary to finance the 

improvements for the following infrastructure projects: 

          • Street Improvement District #198 (New asphalt street construction took place on 

Action Drive SE in the Midway 14th Addition. The improvements also include the installation of 

curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights, chip seal and related work) ($190,000) 

          • Street Improvement District #200 (New asphalt street construction took place on 

24th Street NW between 6th Avenue NW and 8th Avenue NW. The improvements also included 

the installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, chip seal and related work) ($230,000) 

 

On September 6, 2016, the Board of City Commissioners approved the confirmation of the 

assessment list for these Districts.  On October 4, 2016, the Board of City Commissioners 

approved the Letter of Intent and Rule G-17 letter from Dougherty & Company LLC as the 

Underwriter for the Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series B.  On October 31, 2016, the 

City certified the special assessments to the Morton County Auditor.  The proceeds from the sale 

of warrants and bonds are summarized as follows:  $408,129.52 for construction, engineering, 

legal, administration, testing and inspection; $11,870.48 for bonding and financing related costs. 

The assessment period for these Districts will be 15 years to match the term of the Bonds. The 

interest rate on the bonds is projected to be 2.2532% and the interest rate on the assessments is 

projected to be 3.7532% with no assessment interest the first year. 

 

It was recommended to approve the Resolution Awarding Sale of Warrants and Bonds; To approve 

the Financing Resolution for Street Improvement Districts #198, #200 Definitive Improvement 

Warrants; To approve the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $420,000 Refunding Improvement 

Bonds of 2016, Series B.  The resolutions are required to be approved separately.  (See Resolutions 

#1i-1iii below.) 
 

2.         Consider extension for Storefront Improvement project at 3420 Memorial Highway. 

Business Development & Communications Director Huber presented a request for an extension 

for Schmidt Sales LLP at 3420 Memorial Highway to complete planting of trees, shrubs and/or 

perennials as part of a Memorial Highway Storefront and Landscape Improvement project. 

 

The Mandan City Commission approved up to $30,000 in matching funds for a project by 

Schmidt Sales LLP on January 19, 2016.  The owner has completed nearly all components of the 

project with $99,848 in eligible program expenditures submitted to date. The exception is the 

planting of trees, shrubs or perennials, which was part of the project as required and approved by 

the Mandan Architectural Review Commission, Mandan Growth Fund Committee and City 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 20, 2016 

Page 4 of 8 

Commission. The deadline for project completion is one year from date of approval on 6/18/17.   

The matter has not yet been presented to the Growth Fund Committee because it is more 

procedural in nature. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve a Storefront Improvement Program reimbursement to 

Schmidt Sales LLP for 90% of approved matching funds with a 10% withholding to assure 

completion of required landscaping by an extended deadline of May 31, 2017.  Commissioner 

Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The 

motion passed. 

 

3.         Consider Community Beautification Committee recommendation to participate in an 

alliance for litter prevention. Business Development & Communications Director Huber 

presented a request to consider City of Mandan involvement in a possible state litter prevention 

alliance.  The Community Beautification Committee (CBC) over the last three years has led the 

efforts of the community clean-up day.  Discussions in 2016 included the topic of litter control 

and prevention including informative and educational signage as well as state laws and 

ordinances, such as enforcing fines and enforcement to require proper disposal of litter. There are 

possibilities for collaborative efforts with Keep North Dakota Clean and the Theodore Roosevelt 

Expressway Association clean-up efforts for Hwy 85. Executive Director Cal Klewin is 

interested in organizing a meeting in Bismarck to discuss how organizations and agencies can 

work together on litter control strategies.  At its November 10, 2016 meeting the CBC voted to 

support an alliance to prevent litter in North Dakota and to appoint CBC member and citizen 

volunteer Amy Schmidt to represent the City of Mandan. The CBC recommended the City 

Commission approve Community Beautification Committee involvement in a statewide alliance 

to improve litter prevention and that Amy Schmidt be the designated representative for Mandan. 

There is no financial impact to the City of Mandan.  The meetings will be held in Bismarck. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the City Commission approve Community 

Beautification Committee involvement in a statewide alliance to improve litter prevention 

and that Amy Schmidt be the designated representative.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the 

motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.         Consider proposal for a redevelopment plan for the 400-500 blocks of W Main Street. 

Business Development & Communications Director Huber presented a request to consider 

approval of a proposal to provide a redevelopment plan for the 400 and 500 blocks of West Main 

Street.  A representative of Icon Architectural Group  which opened an office in Mandan in 

2016, approached Mayor Helbling and Director Huber earlier this fall with preliminary ideas and 

concepts for redevelopment of West Main Street, at the Central Market (504 W Main) and 

Thrifty White Drug (511 First St NW) buildings and the adjacent block, former Elks building.  

 

The former grocery store building has been vacant since December 2013 with a continuing 

lease that expires December 31, 2016. The other building has been vacant since the pharmacy 

relocated to north Mandan the summer of 2014. Recent activity in the larger building has 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 20, 2016 

Page 5 of 8 

been related to the tenant restoring the building as per lease obligations. There had been interest 

by a grocery company through March 2016, but that has been unsuccessful. Grocery and other 

retail recruitment efforts will continue, but other uses and options may need to be more closely 

examined to help stimulate interest.  

 

Director Huber has been in contact with property owners and property representatives on the 

subject blocks to let them know about the proposal for a redevelopment plan. Contacts were 

supportive and comments heard were to “do something.” The subject properties for the 400 

Block and 500 Block were outlined in the presentation materials.   The Business Development 

and Communications Department Budget for 2016 included $11,000 under the line item of 

professional services, primarily for a hotel feasibility study. This was not executed due to the 

number of hotels that had opened in the metro area by the end of 2015 as well as overall reduced 

occupancy rates. These dollars could be transferred to the 2017 budget to cover this 

redevelopment plan and any additional associated expenses.  Director Huber stated she has 

worked with the Icon Architectural Group previously. They are a company based in Grand Forks 

and have established an office in Mandan. They have a vested interest in the community.  

It was recommended to approve the proposal by Icon Architectural Group for a redevelopment 

plan for the 400-500 blocks of West Main Street. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the proposal by Icon Architectural Group for a 

redevelopment plan for the 400 and 500 blocks of West Main Street. Commissioner Davis 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The 

motion passed. 

 

I.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1.         Consider Resolutions for Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series B: 

            (i)  Resolution Awarding Sale of Warrants and Bonds.  Commissioner Rohr moved to 

approve the Resolution Awarding Sale of Warrants and Bonds.  Commissioner Braun seconded 

the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

            (ii) Financing Resolution for Street Improvement Districts #198, #200 Definitive 

Improvement Warrants.  Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Financing Resolution for 

Street Improvement Districts #198, #200 Definitive Improvement Warrants.  Commissioner 

Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: 

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

           (iii) Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $420,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, 

Series B.  Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of 

$420,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series B. Commissioner Davis seconded the 

motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 20, 2016 

Page 6 of 8 

2.         Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1255 adopting the 2015 

International Fire Code with amendments.  Fire Chief Nardello reported that there have been no 

comments received in opposition to the passage of this Ordinance from any of the public.  

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Second Consideration and Final Passage of 

Ordinance 1255 adopting the 2015 International Fire Code with amendments. Commissioner 

Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The 

motion passed. 

 

3.          Consider Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North Dakota Department 

of Health for a Loan under the Clean Water Act.  Finance Director Welch presented for 

consideration a Resolution authorizing filing of an application with the North Dakota Department of 

Health for a Loan under the Clean Water Act.  He stated this matter relates to the update provided by 

Director Froseth regarding the breaks and repairs of the 30 inch transmission line site.   
 
The emergency project consists of rehabilitation of approximately 1,400 linear feet of existing 30" 

PCCP transmission pipeline that extends from the water treatment facility to Sunset Reservoir for the 

current project and also into next year.  This transmission main is a critical component of the City's 

water distribution system and over the past few years the City has experienced catastrophic failures 

of the pipeline. The City previously replaced 3,500 linear feet of the transmission main. The project 

includes proposed construction activities to rehabilitate the pipe in place, including lining, addition of 

valves for isolation and air release valves. On December 13, 2016 the Board of City Commissioners 

approved an Emergency Declaration and entered into an Agreement with Weisz and Sons contractors 

for the immediate repair; approved to order the remainder of the replacement pipe; and approved to 

enter into an Agreement with Advanced Engineering and Environmental Services for engineering 

services for the 30" Transmission Line Emergency Repair Assistance. 

 
To finance the emergency project, the City will apply for a loan from the State Revolving Fund 

Program (SRF) through the North Dakota Public Finance Authority. The loan will be for a period of 

20 years at an interest rate of 1.5% plus a 0.5% administrative fee. The loan will be repaid from user 

fees. The City is only obligated for the loan draw requests.  

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North 

Dakota Department of Health for a loan under the Clean Water Act.  Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The 

motion passed. 

 

4.         Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance 1242, an ordinance to amend and 

re-enact Sec. 101-1-3, add and enact Article 3 of Chapter 101 and amend and re-enact Sec. 105-

1-3, Sec. 105-1-4, Article 3 of Chapter 105 and Sec. 109-2-5 of the Mandan Municipal Code 

related to definitions, appeals, accessory dwelling units, use groups, residential zoning districts 

and utility service.  Principal Planner Decker stated that this action is an update of the single 

family residential zones and all the other items that were necessary to be updated.  There was one 

comment received which was brought forward at the last meeting.  The comments were minimal 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 20, 2016 

Page 7 of 8 

and did not affect the language in the ordinance.  A review of the multi-family residential zones 

will be looked at in the upcoming month.  

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance 

1242, an ordinance to amend and re-enact Sec. 101-1-3, add and enact Article 3 of Chapter 101 

and amend and re-enact Sec. 105-1-3, Sec. 105-1-4, Article 3 of Chapter 105 and Sec. 109-2-5 of 

the Mandan Municipal Code related to definitions, appeals, accessory dwelling units, use groups, 

residential zoning districts and utility service. Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll 

call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Absent; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

5.         Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance 1254 amending and reenacting 

PUD District 2015-01 related to Lakewood 9
th

 Addition.  Principal Planner Decker stated that 

Lakewood 9
th

 is along 40
th

 Street immediately behind the fire station.  This project had 

anticipated several options for development and one of them finally came to fruition.  

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance 

1254 amending and reenacting PUD District 2015-01 related to Lakewood 9th Addition. 

Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

6.  Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance 1253 amending and reenacting 

Sec. 105-1-2 (5) of the Mandan Code of Ordinances related to accessory buildings. (Item 

removed from agenda until a later time.) 

 

J.          OTHER BUSINESS:   

1.         Announcement of road projects’ current solicitation of public input. 

Planning & Engineering Director Froseth requested opinions and guidance of some road projects 

that are in the early stages of future planning.  The first project is Main Street Traffic signals.  

There is Federal funding allotted for this project. The public input meeting was held on 

December 8, 2016.  The presentation slides can be found on the City’s website under the 

Announcements tab.  The official comment period ends 12/24/16.   

 

The second project is the McKenzie Drive reconstruction project.  Federal funds have been 

received for this project.  This project is located at 46
th

 and the Expressway on-and-off ramps.  It 

also includes the long term solution for traffic control at 46
th

 Avenue and McKenzie Drive SE.  

The public input meeting for this project is scheduled for 12/21/16 from 5 – 7 p.m. with a formal 

presentation at 5:30 at the Mandan Parks and Recreation Office Building at the Raging Rivers 

facility. The presentation slides will be posted tomorrow.  The official comment period for this 

project ends on 1/5/17.   

 

2.         Commissioner Rohr stated he has had calls about the Christmas lights at Dykshoorn Park.  

The City will need to take a look at the downtown display to see if configurations with better 

lighting would be possible.  That may have to occur in the near future. He noted that the Mandan 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 20, 2016 

Page 8 of 8 

Progress Organization (MPO) will be the proper entity to bring that forward. The lights are 

getting old and the process of putting them up and taking them down has taken a toll on them.  

 

3.         Mayor Helbling announced that tax statement brochures were included inside the water 

bills sent out this week. He said there is information contained within the brochure that includes 

how the taxes are broken down.  He commented that the City of Mandan taxes appear to be on 

the lower end of most taxes throughout the State of North Dakota. He encouraged everyone to 

review that publication.    

 

L.         ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, Commissioner 

Rohr moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:20 p.m.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  

The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

 Tim Helbling 

President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider approval of the ND 1806, ND 810 and I-94B signing 

and retro reflectivity project Cost Participation and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The DOT continually identifies and addresses sign 

maintenance and reflectivity. For the year 2017, the DOT has identified signs needing this type 

of work along the ND 1806, ND 810 and I-94 Business corridors within the City of Mandan.   

 

In order for the DOT to bid this project through their system, a requirement of receiving funding, 

the CPM Agreement must be agreed to. The CPM Agreement lays out which entity is responsible 

for each task of the project and is a standard DOT agreement. The local share of this project is to 

be funded by the Mandan sales tax fund.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Cost Participation and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement with accompanying 

appendices 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   The attachment lays out a project cost of $16,932 within the City of 

Mandan. The city’s expected match is 5% for a total local share estimate of $847. The city’s 

local share would be paid for by the 1% City Sales Tax Fund.      

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve of the Cost Participation and Maintenance Agreement.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve of the Cost Participation and Maintenance 

Agreement with the DOT for the 2017 Retroreflectivity Signing Improvement project.  

 

 

MEETING DATE: January 3, 2017 

PREPARATION DATE: December 30, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Retroreflectivity Signing Improvement Cost 

Participation and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement 

 

  

Consent No. 1 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Retroreflectivity Signing Improvement Cost Participation and Maintenance 

(CPM) Agreement 

Page 2 of 8 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Retroreflectivity Signing Improvement Cost Participation and Maintenance 

(CPM) Agreement 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Retroreflectivity Signing Improvement Cost Participation and Maintenance 

(CPM) Agreement 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Retroreflectivity Signing Improvement Cost Participation and Maintenance 

(CPM) Agreement 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Retroreflectivity Signing Improvement Cost Participation and Maintenance 

(CPM) Agreement 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Retroreflectivity Signing Improvement Cost Participation and Maintenance 

(CPM) Agreement 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Retroreflectivity Signing Improvement Cost Participation and Maintenance 

(CPM) Agreement 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To agree to fully reimburse the NDDOT for cost associated 

with the design of traffic signals along Main Street from 10
th

 Avenue West (Highway 6) 

to 6
th

 Avenue East (Highway 1806).  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  City staff and NDDOT staff are in agreement with 

the need to replace and improve the traffic signals along Main Street from 10
th

 Avenue 

West to 6
th

 Avenue East. The project would replace where warranted with all new poles, 

mast arms, signal heads and likely controllers at each location. Additionally, this project 

would implement Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) elements such as vehicle 

detection and pedestrian push button crossings instead of the existing timed only phasing 

method of control. Given this corridor’s classification as being on the primary regional 

system, the funding for this project will be about 80% federal funds, 10% state and 10% 

local (City of Mandan). This agreement assures the NDDOT that if the city changes their 

mind and decide not to move forward with the project for any reason, that the NDDOT 

would be fully reimbursed for design costs.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Total project estimate is for $1.5M. The local share is estimated to 

be about $150K. The local share for this project is to be paid for by the 1% City Sales 

Tax Fund. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City 

Attorney for his review. 

 

MEETING DATE: January 3,  2017 

PREPARATION DATE: December 30, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Main Street Traffic Signals Preliminary 

Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

 

  

Consent No. 2 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Main Street Traffic Signals Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 2 of 8 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

Agreement. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve of the Preliminary Engineering 

Reimbursement Agreement for the Main Street Signals project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Main Street Traffic Signals Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Main Street Traffic Signals Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Main Street Traffic Signals Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Main Street Traffic Signals Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Main Street Traffic Signals Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Main Street Traffic Signals Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value 

for Leo Snider 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #65-2866000 

Lot 3  Block 51 Mandan Proper (OT) 

 

Reason for abatement:  To correct the 2016 market value of the property to reflect 

reappraisal 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    Property Record Sheets 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $177 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to correct values as presented 

for 2016 for Leo Snider 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve to correct values as presented for 2016 

for Leo Snider 

 

MEETING DATE: January 3, 2017 

PREPARATION DATE: December 20, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing  

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw 

PRESENTER: George Railsback/Deputy Assessor 

SUBJECT: Correction to 2016 Values 

 

  

Consent No. 3i 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Leo Snider 

Page 2 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Leo Snider 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Leo Snider 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Leo Snider 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Leo Snider 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Leo Snider 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Leo Snider 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 
 



                                              

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value 

for Kent & Gail Jacobson 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #65-6107645 

Lot 14  Block 1 Heart Ridge 

 

Reason for abatement:  To correct the 2016 market value of the property to reflect 

reappraisal 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    Copy of Tax Statement; Property Record Sheets; Comparable 

Sales Sheets 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $257 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to correct values as presented 

for 2016 for Kent & Gail Jacobson 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve to correct values as presented for 2016 

for Kent & Gail Jacobson 

MEETING DATE: January 3, 2017 

PREPARATION DATE: December 20, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing  

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw 

PRESENTER: George Railsback/Deputy Assessor 

SUBJECT: Correction to 2016 Values 

 

  

Consent No. 3ii 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 2 of 13 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 3 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 4 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 5 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 6 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 7 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 8 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 9 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 10 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 11 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 12 of 13 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Kent & Gail 

Jacobson 

Page 13 of 13 

 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Seeking authorization for Detective Matthew Graves to 

attend Fire Investigation training in Emmitsburg, Maryland.   

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Mandan Police Department is responsible for 

investigating fires that involve criminal activity and assisting the Fire Department when 

needed. The specialized training necessary to investigate fires is not typically offered in 

North Dakota, but it is available through the National Fire Academy in Emmitsburg, 

Maryland.   

 

The training lasts two weeks and the costs are reimbursed. The exact dates of the training 

are unknown because there are multiple sessions throughout the year and students are 

assigned by the academy.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The initial costs will be paid for out of the Police Departments 2017 

Training Budget and when reimbursement is obtained we are requesting those funds be 

deposited back into the Police Departments training budget.   

  

STAFF IMPACT:  None  

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  None  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend the approval of out of state travel/training.     

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I make a motion to approve out of state travel for Detective 

Matthew Graves in 2017 for the purpose of attending the Fire Investigation training in 

Emmitsburg, Maryland.    

MEETING DATE:  January 3
rd

, 2017 

PREPARATION DATE:  December 21
st
, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jason Ziegler 

PRESENTER: Jason Ziegler 

SUBJECT: Out of State Training 

 

  

Consent No. 4i 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Seeking authorization for Lieutenant Pat Haug to attend 

orientation for Improving Criminal Justice Response in Alexandria, Virginia on January 

24-26, 2017.    

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  In October of 2016 the Abused Adult Resource 

Center and the Mandan Police Department obtained a Federal grant to address Domestic 

Violence, Sexual Assault, Stalking and Dating Violence. A requirement of the grant is 

attendance at the orientation for Improving Criminal Justice Response for grantees. The 

cost of the travel and training will be paid for out of the grant.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The cost of travel and training will be paid for out of the grant.    

  

STAFF IMPACT:  None  

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  None  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend the approval of out of state travel/training.     

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I make a motion to approve out of state travel and training for 

Pat Haug to attend the orientation for Improving Criminal Justice Response for grantees.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 3
rd

, 2017 

PREPARATION DATE:  December 21
st
, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jason Ziegler 

PRESENTER: Jason Ziegler 

SUBJECT: Out of State Training 

 

  

Consent No. 4ii 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Out of State Training – Lt. Pat Haug 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To request approval for reimbursement money from the ND 

Department of Emergency Services (NDDES), which has been paid to the City of 

Mandan, be added back into the Fire Department’s 2016 budget. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

Expenses directly related to the Mandan Fire Department’s assistance to the Morton 

County Sheriff’s Department have initially been paid from the fire department’s budget. 

These expenses include wages and equipment expenses. The personnel reimbursement 

will be placed into the 2016 payroll expenses and the equipment reimbursement into the 

fire department equipment reserve account.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: As of this date, the reimbursement totals for the fire department are:  

 Personnel Costs = $9,630.10 

 Equipment Costs = $26,520.00 

 Total = $36,150.10 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  None 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: None 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Move to approve for the reimbursement dollars from NDDES, 

for fire department expenses, be moved into the Fire Department’s 2016 budget.  

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move to approve the fire department 2016 revenue 

budget amendment request with reimbursement funds from NDDES. $26,520 to 

equipment reserve and $9,630.10 to salaries & benefits. 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 3, 2017 

PREPARATION DATE: December 22, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Fire Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Steve Nardello 

PRESENTER: Chief Steve Nardello 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment -NDDES Reimbursements 

 

  

Consent No. 5   



 

 

 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider appointments to the Mandan Growth Fund 

Committee (MGF). 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The MGF is a nine-member committee that 

considers requests for economic development incentives. It makes recommendations to 

the City Commission related to applications for assistance to businesses desiring to 

expand or locate in the Mandan area with a focus on economic diversification, enhancing 

employment opportunities, expanding the local tax base, increasing capital investment 

and improving the entrepreneurial climate. 
 

There are two positions up for consideration with the following preferences: one 

representing the Memorial Highway/east Mandan area, and one representing the 

community at large. Terms are three years. Growth Fund Committee members may be 

representatives of the Mandan business community through ownership or employment 

with a Mandan business or Mandan residents. Letters of interest were sought through an 

Oct. 13, 2016, news release with a requested deadline for responses of Nov. 1 or until 

positions are filled. 

 

Members whose terms are expiring are: 

 Jeremy Bauer (1
st
 term) 

 Curtis Patzell (1
st
 term) 

 

The MGF met Dec. 22, 2016 to consider letter of interests from the following persons: 

 Jeremy Bauer 

 Susan Beehler 

 Curtis Patzell 

MEETING DATE: January 3, 2017 

PREPARATION DATE: December 28, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Appointments to Mandan Growth Fund Committee 

 

  

New Business No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Appointments to Mandan Growth Fund Committee 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Letters of interest 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The MGF recommends the re-appointment of Jeremy Bauer and 

Curtis Patzell to a second term of three years, from 2017 through Dec. 31, 2019.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the recommendation, reappointing Jeremy 

Bauer and Curtis Patzell to the Mandan Growth Fund Committee for three-year terms 

from 2017 through 2019. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Appointments to Mandan Growth Fund Committee 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Appointments to Mandan Growth Fund Committee 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

December 6, 2013 

Mandan City Commission 

205 Second Avenue NW 

Mandan, ND 58554 

To the Members of the Growth Fund Committee: 

I would like to express my interest in applying for one of the two open seats on the 

Growth Fund Committee. I think that I am a strong candidate for this position for several 

reasons, below is a little about myself and what I may bring to this committee: 

1: I have a great stake in our community as a resident of Mandan for 17 years and a parent 

of two children who currently attend Lewis and Clark Elementary. My wife, Cassie, was 

born and raised in Mandan and she’s an active member on the Parent Teacher 

Organization at the school. I am also a volunteer coach for the Mandan Youth Football.   

2: I am currently employed with Coco-Cola as an Account Manager and have been for 

two years, prior to that I was employed with Bobcat Co. With Bobcat I was in a 

leadership role, I have strong communication skills, verbally and via email. I’ve worked 

with a diverse group and handle myself diplomatically with professionals of all levels. I 

have a strong work ethic, loyal and dependable. 

3: A driving factor in my interest in serving on the Board is to continue moving Mandan 

forward. I believe our community has come far but this is an exciting time in our history 

and I would like to assist in that continued movement.  

I’d very much like to be part of the growth and I appreciate you taking the time to review 

my letter of intent. If you have any questions please call me at 391-5460. I hope that you 

will find me to be a worthwhile addition. 

Thank you, 

 

Jeremy Bauer 

2701 11
th

 Ave NW 

Mandan, ND 58554 

391-5460 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Appointments to Mandan Growth Fund Committee 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

Susan Beehler  Mandan Resident for 24 years 

Mandan business owner of ShopSuzyB (formerly Suzy Shuze n Starz) a Pride of 

Dakota fashion accessories company creating gifts to “Whisper to the Heart”.  Focus is on 

marketing my products wholesale, currently servicing stores, shops and boutiques in 

North Dakota, Montana and Minnesota.  My products have reached customers in all 50 

states, DC, Puerto Rico and the Virgin Islands. 

Business email suzyb@shopsuzyb.com 

Personal email suzybbuzz@gmail.com 

Work Experience 
over 20 years in retail and customer service  

over 18 years in the hospitality industry 

over 13 years  as a small business owner of two Mandan businesses  

over 9 years in test administration with an international company 

over 4 years in shipping/postal industry  

Current Organizations  
board member for the Bismarck/Mandan Professional Woman 

board member Bismarck Urban Harvest 

council member of the West Central Human Services Regional  Council  

Social media lead for a national mom’s organization 

Member of:  

Bismarck Historical Society  

Bisman Stilettos 

Mandan Progress Organization 

North Dakota State Railroad Museum in Mandan 

North Dakota Women’s Network 

Pride of Dakota 

 

Past Experience 
Participant in Innovate North Dakota program   

Presenter at 1Million Cups 

Founding board member of the Mandan Historical Society 

Writer of grant for our Mandan Heritage Homes 

National Trust for Historical Preservation 

Busy Committee  

Girl Scout leader for 8 years 

Over 8 years as a church youth leader 

Camp director 

Christmas program director 

mailto:suzyb@shopsuzyb.com
mailto:suzybbuzz@gmail.com


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: Appointments to Mandan Growth Fund Committee 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Curtis Patzell 
3905 Edgewater PL SE 

Mandan ND 58554 

C- (701)400-6637 

H- (7010663-3545 

Curtispat@aol.com 

 

 

 

October 28, 2016 

 

Commissioners, 
 

I'm contacting you in regards to the open positions on the Mandan Growth Fund Committee. 

 

The past two years I have served on the Mandan Growth Fund Committee and would like to be 

considered to be appointed for a full three year term.  During my term on the committee I have 

been an active and supportive member in promoting the needs and business environment of 

Mandan.    

 

As a resident of Mandan, I believe that it is important to support the community, and give back to 

a community that has provided me with so much.  In addition to being a resident of Mandan, I 

also have over 32 years of retail experience.  Including 23 years as store manager of the Wal-

Mart Store in Bismarck ND.  I have retired from that position and I am interested is using my 

knowledge and experience to provide guidance in other areas.   

 

During my time as Store manager, I have always been involved in committees and groups, as I 

feel that it is important to give back to the communities that have provided for me and my family 

over the years.  In addition to my experience in retail and leadership, I also have a Bachelors 

degree in Business Administration from Kansas State University.   

 

Please accept  this letter as confirmation of my continued interest in serving on the Mandan 

Growth Fund for the City of Mandan.  I believe that the Committee would continue to 

benefit from my experience, leadership and vision. 
  

Thank you for your consideration. 

Best regards, 

 

Curtis Patzell 

 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF MANDAN  

EMERGENCY DECLARATION 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Mandan has suffered damages from Severe Winter Weather that 

was caused by wet heavy snow, winds, and blizzard conditions that occurred on November 29, 

December 5, December 25, 2016 and January 2, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, this storm blocked city roads and streets requiring the expenditure of excess 

amounts of money for snow removal; and 

WHEREAS, the impact of these damages raise concerns and threaten the health, well-

being, and public safety of citizens in the City of Mandan due to said storms; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of snow removal and the cost of repair, replacement and cleanup of 

damaged property is in excess of available citizen and city resources. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mandan City Commission declares a 

state of emergency to include costs and damages from severe storm activity to limit the hardships 

and impact of this emergency upon the citizens of the City of Mandan.   

DATED at Mandan, North Dakota, this _____ day of January, 2017. 

 

CITY OF MANDAN 

 

By:  _______________________________ 

President 

 

 

Other Business No. 1 

Added January 3, 2017 

 


	Agenda January 3, 2017
	Minutes - December 13, 2016 (Rescheduled from December 6, 2016 mtg.)
	Minutes - December 20, 2016 - Regular mtg.
	Cost Participation and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement with NDDOT for signs project
	Main Street Traffic Signals Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement
	Correction in 2016 True & Full Value for Leo Snider
	Correction to 2016 Values for Kent & Gail Jacobson
	Out of State Travel Request - Detective Matthew Graves (Fire Investigation training)
	Out of State Travel Request - Lieutenant Pat Haug (Improving Criminal Justice Response - Domestic Violence)
	Fire Department Budget Amendment - NDDES Reimbursements
	Appointments to Mandan Growth Fund Committee
	City of Mandan Emergency Declaration - Severe Winter Weather - added 1-3-17



